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Marchpole Holdings plc

Chairman’s statement

The following statement 15 a report of the results of Marchpole Heldings plc for the 53 weeks ended 5 April 2008

Despite a difficult trading year and making a substantial loss at the full year, we have made significant progress 1n all
parts of our business and continue to evolve nto a diversified nternattonal luxury brand management business
During the period, Marchpole has successfully negotiated a number of new partnerships and hicence agreements for its
globally recognised brands We have broadened our customer base and capitalised on the popularity of our portfolio
m key brand driven consumer markets that are experiencing a rismg demand for luxury fashion apparel We remain
committed to strengthening our presence on an nternational platform and we now operate 1n all major fashion markets
of Continental and Eastern Europe, Asia, the Americas, the Middle East, as well as the UK We anticipate that these
markets will make an increasing contribution to earnings enhancing growth over the longer term

We continue to work with Jean-Charles de Castelbajac to broaden the customer base of the popular JCC label During
the pertod, we were delighted to sign an exclusive agreement with global demim brand, Lee Cooper Inc (“Lee
Cooper™} to launch the first and only premium demim hnes offered by Lee Cooper Additionally, we signed a long
term agreement with world famous headwear company, New Era Both fashion lines were well received and, post the
period end, we successfully renegotiated and extended our contract with Lee Cooper for improved seturns during the
next financial period

We continue to strengthen the global reach of the JCC brand i major luxury brand driven markets and the label 15
now available 1n the Middle East, Russia and the Far East We opened new flagship stores in Moscow and Tokye In
addition to this, the brand continues to build upon 1ts success in the USA  Notwithstanding the continued growth of
the JCC brand, we have experienced a significant trading toss with our major partner 1n Korea resulting in a EUR 2 0
million (approxmmately) loss of revenue However, our licensing income has doubled from £1 45 million tc £2 9
mllion

In the results for the period ending 5 April 2008, we had also anticipated a payment of £1 5 million 1n respect of the
termination ot the perfume licence with JCC agreed in February 2008 However, we were unable to recognise this
payment as proceeds had not been received This money wul be shown in the six months to 30 September 2008 as the
proceeds have now been recewved in full

The sales of Emanuel Ungaro and Ungaro Homme remain 1n line with our expectations despite difficult tracding
condittons We have renegotiated our terms of trading with the House of Ungaro’s three major stores in Paris, New
York and Palm Beach These renegotiated terms will improve our cash flow and profitability

Our two most recent acquisitions of Greenmark and Homebody are now fully integrated We continue to work with
both companies to fully explott the potential of both businesses worldwide Although the shoe retailing market s
challenging, our Greenmark business has actneved £22 0 mithon turnover Most encouragingly, we have expanded
the business from single market sourcing and manufacturing in Brazil nto the fast growing sowrcing and
manufacturing market of Asia This imtiative has been driven by our expertise i the Asian market

Despite the legal dispute with Ozwald Boateng’s Bespoke Couture Limited which has now been successfully settled in
Marchpole’s favour, we continue t0 make very good progress and the busimess 1s on track and has increased sales by
150%

It 15 extremely frustrating that we have made this significant loss at the full year, even though the Company 15 making
progress We have experienced difficult trading conditions, in particular with one of our major international partners
and also with one of our signmficant UK customers, resulting in this loss  We have taken appropriate measures to
mitigate against these 1ssues and put Marchpole i a stronger position to take advantage of future profitable trading
opportunities  'We continue to make good progress 1 expanding sales in Russia, the Eastern European states, the
Middle East and Asia where there 15 a rising demand for luxury brands We recognise these markets as an integral
part of the Company’s future profitabihity
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Chairman’s statement

Marchpole has a proven expertise 1 managing brands on a worldwide platform We continue to assess earnings
enhancing opportunities and we are well placed to capitalise on our core strength and dehiver better shareholder value
as part of our three to five year programme for global growth

Results

This has been a difficult trading year and as a result the Group has made a loss after taxation of £5 4 m (2007 restated
profit £4 2m)

The directors are not recommending the payment of a final dividend The total dividend for the period was 1 1 pence
(2007 3 75 pence)

Dividends

The Board 1s reviewing 1ts dividend policy as a result of the Group’s financial performance

Board Changes and Management Structure

Following the departure of John Harrison m July 2007, John Macaulay was appomted to the position of Group
Finance Director and joined the Board on 10 March 2008 John, who was Group Financial Officer, has over 15 years
experience in senior financial positions 1 the clothing business Raymond Harnis, formerly Acting Finance Director
since July 2007, resumed his position as an executive Director on the Board

To support the next stage of the Company’s development, Chnis Phillips was apponted full time Executive Chairman
tn February 2008 Since joimung the Board in 2002, Chris has been an integral part of the management team In
August 2007, Marchpole appointed John Molloy to the Board John, who leads the London buying office for C&A
Europe, has spent over 40 years in the retail industry and brings unrivalled commercial experience to the Group

The Board has also restructured the management of the operating subsidianes to enhance performance and improve
corporate governance 1n the iternational subsidiaries

Licences
Emanuel Ungaro and Ungaro Homme

Marchpole continues to develop its relationship with the House of Ungaro and has made further progress in
estabhishing the Emanuel Ungaro and Ungaro Homme diffusion labels as a worldwide menswear brand

The Board remains confident in 1ts strategic decision to use the Ungaro brand to continue to develop the business We
have restructured the US business and cut overheads to realise cost savings Although the retail environment m
America continues to be extremely difficult, the US business has now turned the corner and we have seen a very
significant increase 1n sales

Demand for the new first line Emanuel Ungaro collectton continues to increase  The House of Ungaro has commutted
to opening a menswear only flagship store in Paris later this year

Addttionally, the nising demand for the premium brand has led to three new flagship stores being scheduled, with one
store already trading in Bucharest during the period The additional stores will be opened i Azerbajan and
Uzbekistan

Post the period end. we successfully agreed terms with leading Korean distributor, Haname! Group for the distribution
of the Emanuel Ungaro first ine menswear collection throughout South Korea The contract 1s worth EUR 5 2 million
and has been signed for an imtial period of five-years, extendable for a further five years As part of the exclusive
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agreement, Marchpole will open a new Emanuel Ungaro flagship store in Seoul i 2009 Additionally, Emanuel
Ungaro SAS signed a licence agreement with E-Sense Co Ltd to produce and distribute the Ungaro Homme second
line menswear collection as well as the Ungaro Golf men’s collection in South Korea

Jean-Charles de Castelbajac S.A. (“JCC”)

Bulding on the established popularity of the JCC brand, we continue to work with Jean-Charles de Castelbajac to
fully exploit the potential of the label 1n the mternational fashion arena

During the period, the JCC brand has enjoyed an icrease in royalty tncome from £1 46 million to £2 85 nullion ail as
a direct result of new Licensing agreements that Marchpole has initiated in the past year However, sales decreased
from £6 O million to £5 2 mullion due to loss of revenue of approximately EUR 2 0 million from our Korean partner

We are commutted to broadening the customer base of the brand by adding important product lines to the JCC
portiohio In April 2007, we signed a long-term licence agreement with world famous headwear company, New Era

Naotably, JCC signed an exclusive partnership with global demim brand, Lee Cooper Inc for an tnitial period of-five
years to design two premium denim lines, the only premmum lines offered by Lee Cooper The range of denim lines
and casual tops are so0ld throughout JCC flagship stores and 110 Lee Cooper stores worldwide  Since the period end,
we extended our imitial agreement with Lee Cooper and will now supply a mimimum of 100,000 pieces of demim wear
per annum As part of the successful renegotiations, Marchpole will recerve guaranteed mimimum annual incomes and
royalties The collection will be sold through Lee Cooper own outlets commencing with 181 stores worldwide 1n
spring 2009, increasing to 240 stores for winter 2009

There 15 a growing populanty for the JCC label 1n Russia, Eastern Europe and the Middle East Following our
exclusive contract with Russian based, The Crocus Group, 1 winter 2007 we opened a JCC flagship store in Moscow
Our strong positien m Russia has supported our expansion of the brand into other Eastern European states where the
label has a growing popularity

In the Middle East our distribution agreement with The Chalhoub Group, a specialist company which has promoted
luxury brands 1n region for over 50 years has enabled us to strengthen our presence throughout the region

The JCC range remamns a highly sought after brand n the Far East To support the mcreased demand for the label,
Marchpole signed a new agreement with Coronet, a member of the Itochu Group for distnbution throughout Japan and
Korea Additionally, a new flagship store was opened 1n Tokyo in summer 2007 However, during the period, we
have experienced problems with our Korean partner which has led to a decrease in wholesale sales but we have
mcreased revenues from our licensing income

In the USA, JCC has increased 1its distribution

Post the period end, we successfully extended and renegotiated licensing agreements with Rossignol, the major
skiwear company recently acquired by the Quicksilver Group, and Bragard, the major French uniform company Both
contracts were due to expire in 2010 and have been extended for a further five years to 2015 with an increase n the
mimmum annual incomes

Most recently, we opened the first UK JCC flagship store 1n Condwit Street, a prime retail space 1n London’s fashion
district The new store houses the entire JCC collection

Greenmark Limited (‘“‘Greenmark’)

Greenmark Limited, the footwear designer and importer has been fully integrated into the Company During the
period, Marchpole made the strategic decision to termnate an agreement with 1ts main customer who was unable to
meet the requirements of its contract due to financial constraints This has had a significant impact on our results and
gomg forward, we anticipate a decrease in sales of approximately 40% Since the termination of this contract,
Marchpole has strengthened the Greenmark business and we anticipate improved margins ' We have diversified the
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Chairman’s statement

business adding new sourcing areas 1n Asia to ensure more cost efficient production We have achieved solid sales
from this new sourcing imtiative

Homebody Limited

Homebody, the luxury ladies wear, matermity wear and menswear clothing company has suffered a reduction n sales
as direct result of the challenging retaill environment However, the brand continues to develop its website sales which
have shown a slight increase Furthermore, 1n the UK the brand has increased its presence in Harrods at the
Knightsbridge flagship store as well as at the Harrods outlet at the new Terminal 5 in Heathrow, and also online at
www harrods com Additionally, the brand continues to develop tts presence in overseas markets

Boateng

In January 2008, Marchpole finally concluded its legal dispute with Ozwald Boateng’s Bespoke Couture Limited in an

out of court settlement, under the terms of.which Marchpole has extended its manufacturing and distribution licence., .- ae.ssarae: o2

with Ozwald Boateng

These court proceedings have been an unwelcome distraction for management but the settlement will realise
significant cost savings for the Company Marchpole will not have to make any contractual payment to Bespoke
Couture Limited for the next three years, which represents a saving of £1 million plus for the Company Additionally,
Marchpole will be rexmbursed £137,000 1n lieu of professional fees incurred

Our commitment to the brand remains unaltered and the Company continues to sell the Boateng collection and we
have experienced increase 1n sales orders year on year

Outlook

Although we continue to make progress in all parts of our business, poor trading conditions as well as customer and
partner difficulties have impacted our results at the full year However, there are significant opportunities for growth
and we are confident that Marchpole 1s well positioned 1n all key retail markets to deliver better financial performance
during the longer term

We have successfully strengthened our presence 1n major brand driven consumer markets through new hcensing and
partnership agreements, as well as new store openings Additionally, we have restructured some areas of the business
to improve efficiency and reduce cost

We continue to actively seek new partnerships to diversify product lines and expand the cusiomer base of our brands
We are 1n the process of signing a major new joint venture with one of the world’s leading fashion design houses
Furthermore, we have successfully renegotiated our banking facilities with increases 1o support the jomnt venture We
expect to formally announce this joint venture imminently

We have lad s&r@?oundanons during the peniod, taken the necessary actions to mitigate agamnst our losses and

\
Christopher Phillips

Chairman

4 August 2008
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report on the affairs of the Group, together with the financial statements and auditors’
report for the period ended 5 April 2008

Results and dividends

The Group loss for the period after taxation amounted to £5 4m (2007 restated profit - £4 2m) The directors are not
recommending the payment of a final dividend The Board 1s reviewing its dividend policy as a result of the Group's
tinancial performance The total dividend for the period was 1 1 pence (2007 3 75 pence)

Review of business and future developments

The Group’s principal activity 1s the design, production and distribution of designer menswear and womenswear to the
retail trade The Charman’s statement on page 1 contains an overview of the Group’s operations during the period, a
discussion of trading together with an indication of future prospects Net assets have decreased by £7 Om to £5 5m
(2007 restated increased by £2 7m)

Key performance indicators used to evaluate the performance of the Group are

- ket - Tt S WA DDA il b b DT A B T 1SS AN lanl Tl A SR CAKERALIA e 23 5 F ] -“2008 - :20071' T ) L]
£000 £000
(restated)
Revenue 44,749 90,534
Gross Profit 10,374 27,064
Operating (Loss)/Profit 4,740) 8,029
(Lossyearnings per share (19 9p) 15 3p

All the above figures are extracted from the consolidated income statement 1n the financial statements

Financial risk

The key components of financial risk are credit nsk, currency nisk and cash flow risk  Credit nisk 1s mitigated by
accepting only the major retailers 1n each country as customers, and obtaining, 1f available, credst insurance for sales
Only when sales orders have been contracted are purchase orders placed with reputable manufacturers thus giving the
Group a forward view of at least s1x month’s revenue at any time This forward order book also enables the Group to
manage 1ts forward cash flow proactively, and to use both import loan and invoice finance facilities to rmmirmise cash
exposures  During the period, and subsequent to the period end, the Group has faced certain cashflow challenges
Management have addressed the risks through negotiations with the Group’s lenders and suppliers and, as described in
the Chairman’s Statement have recently secured future funding for the Group The foreign exchange risk inherent 1n
the purchase order 1s economically hedged with forward foreign exchange contracts to lock tn the bulk of the cost
economically (see note 19)

A discussion of the key sources of the accounting uncertainties 15 included 1n note 3
The Board 15 satisfied that the financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis
There 15 no maternial difference between the bought value and the carrymmg value of fixed assets held by the Group

The Holding Company’s principal activity is the holding of investments 1n subsidiary companes

Post Balance Sheet events

We are in the process of signing a major new joint venture with one of the world’s leading fashion design houses
Furthermore, we have successfully renegotiated our banking facilities with increases to support the joint venture We
expect to formally announce this jomt venture imminently
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Directors’ report

Directors and their interests
The directors of the Company at the date of this report are listed on page 19 and 20

During the period John Harmson resigned from the board on 25 July 2007, John Molloy was appointed Non-Executive
Director on 1 September 2007 and John Macaulay was appowmnted Finance Director on 10 March 2008

In addition Ray Harris became an Executive Director (previously Non-Executive Director) on 25 July 2007 Ray was
also Acting Finance Director covering the period from John Harnison’s resignation to the appomtment of John
Macaulay Chns Philips also became Executive Chairman on 18 February 2008 (pre viously non-executive Chastrman)

At 5 Apnil 2008 the directors and their beneficial interests tn the ordinary share capital of the Company were as
follows

Ordinary Shares of 5p each
5 April 2008 31 March 2007

Michael Morris 5,288,343 5,238,343
Christopher Phallips 115,000 115,000
Raymond Harris: -=»= - R - - 25,0000 wwrews sonmiws 25 (00
Ronald Stirling 109,500 10,000
John Molloy (appotnted 1 September 2007) 5,000 -
John Macaulay (appointed 10 March 2008) - -
Harvey Shulman 152,000 102,000

There have been no changes nt the beneficial holdings of the directors between 5 April 2008 and 31 July 2008

No director had any material interest m a contract of significance with the Company or a subsidiary undertaking
during the period

Details of directors’ shares options are provided in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 12-17

Capital structure

Details of the authorised and 1ssued share capital, together with detatls of the movements 1n the company’s
1ssued share capital during the period are shown 1 note 9 The company has one class of ordinary

shares which carry no right to fixed income Each share carres the right to one vote at general meetings
of the company

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both
governed by the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation The directors
are not aware of any agreements between holders of the company’s shares that may result in restrictions
on the transfer of securities or on voting rights

Details of employee share schemes are set out n the Directors’ Remuneration Report and note 25 No person has any
special rights of control over the company’s share capital and all 1ssued shares are fully paid

Under 1ts Articles of Association and further to sharcholder resolutions dated 6 September 2007, the company has
authority to 1ssue 2,259 500 ordinary shares

Acquisition of company’s own shares

Further to the shareholders’ resolutions of 6 September 2007, the company purchased 55,000 ordinary shares with a
nominal value of £2,750, for consideration of £69,000 At the period end the Company has shareholders’ authority for
the purchase of 2,612,291 of uts own shares
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Employees

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of 1ts employees and has continued to keep them informed
on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group Weekly
Key Performance Indicator reports are also disseminated throughout the management team The managers are
encouraged to pass on relevant information to the employees in their departments The employee share scheme, which
15 open to all employees who have been with the Company for at least six moaths, has been running successfully since
1ts inception 1n 2002

The average number of employees for the period 1s 137 (2007 131) We continue to examine ways of reducing
overhead by amalgamating operational activities across the Group Our staff are supported by appropriate induction
and training

It 15 the Group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to suitable applications for employment by disabled persons
and, so far as particular disabilities permit, to give continued employment to any existing employees who become
disabled

Substantial shareholdings

As at 30 July 2008 the Company had b&én’ notified (pursuanfio section 198 to 208 of the Comiparniies Act 1985) of thé
following interests which amounted to 3% or more of the 1ssued share capital of the Company

Ordinary shares %
Michael Morris 5,288,343 19 34
Gartmore Investments Management 1,944,129 711
Rathbone Investment Management 1,490,000 545
Jean Charles De Castlebagac 1,365,768 499
Bonley D Esq 1,260,000 461
Michael Morris 1997 Trustees* 1,260,000 461
Charles Stanley & Co 1,030,898 377
Waterhouse Securities 992,607 363
Barclays Stockbrokers Linnted 974,939 357
Barclays Global Investors 961,935 352
Squaregain 910,976 333
Emanuel Ungaro Sa 843,488 308

* Michael Morris does not hold a beneficial interest i this trust

Supphlier policy

The Group’s policy 1s to settle terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction, to ensure
that suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment and to abide by the terms ot payment Trade creditors of the
Group at 5 April 2008 were equivalent to 59 days (2007 46 days) purchases and for Marchpole Holdings Plc 36 days
(2007 243 days), based on the average daily amount invoiced to suppliers during the period

The Group 1s committed to ensunng that our suppliers adhere to a code of practice with regard to working conditions
including mimimum compiiance standards for labour, wages, environmental protection and other 1ssues  Cur quality
controllers make regular visits to our suppliers’ sites to ensure that these standards are maintained

Charitable and political donations

The Group made no chartable donanons during the period (2007 £3,413) The Group has made no political
donations during the period (2007 £ nil)

Election of directors

At the annual general meeting Christopher Philips will retirte 1n accordance with the Articles of Association
Christopher Philips, being eligible, offers himself for election John Molloy and John Macaulay who were appointed

an
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Directors on 1 September 2007 and 10 March 2008 respectively retire at the next annual general meeting and being
eligible, offer themselves for re election

Directors’ confirmation
Each person who s a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) so far as the dwrector 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditors are
unaware, and
(2) the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director 1n order {0 make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and ¢o establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that mmformation
This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of s2342A of the Compantes
Act 1985

By order of the Board

Harvey Shulman

Company Secretary

4 August 2008

.
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Corporate governance

The Board 1s commutted to the principles of corporate governance contamned in the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance which 15 appended to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonity and for which the Board 15
accountable to shareholders The following sets cut the Group’s position with regard to comphance with the
Combined Code

The Board

Details of the composition of the Board have been set out 1n the Directors report  Currently the Board consists of four
executive directors, including the Chairman and three independent non-executive directors who are available to
shareholders to voice their concerns if normal channels have failed to resolve 1ssues or are considered mappropriate
Ronald Stirling 15 the semor independent non-executive director

All new directors undergo an induction programme designed to famibarise them wath all of the working practices of
the Group The Board aims to meet formally at least once per month to discuss matters reserved for their decision
which include, but are not limited to, those with regard to Group strategy, new acquisittons and licences, legal and tax
matters and non-routine operating 1ssues It 15 considered, given the size of the Group, that the Board 15 appropriately
constituted and that the expenence of the directors 1s appropriate for the business During the period to 5 Apnil 2008
individual director Board meeting attendance was as follows

No. of meetings attended

R Harris 11 {of t1}
J Motloy 6 (of 6)
M Mormis 11 {of 11)
J Harnison 4 (of 4)
C Phillips 11 (of 11)
H Shulman 10 {of 11)
R Strling 10 (of 11)

Full attendance occurred at all meetings of the Nomunation, Audit and Remuneration Committees  The terms of
reference of these Commuttees are available on the Company’s website

Performance evaluation

Annually the performance of the Board as a whole and the individual directors are evaluated The non-executive
directors are monuored by the Chauman In the case of the Chairman and executive directors, the Remuneration
Committee momtor their performance This has been carried out 1n the current period through interview of individual
directors 1n relation to the performance of the Board as a whole and the individuals and commuttees therein  No
significant weaknesses were detected in the current period’s evaluation

Nomination Committee

The Nommnation Commuttee, which 1s chawred by Harvey Shulman, 1s constituted of all non-executive directors The
Nominaticn Committee proposes all director appomtments which are n turn discussed and approved by the Board
The Company’s Articles of Association require all appointments made to the Board during any penod to be confirmed
by the shareholders at the following Annual General Meeting as well as requiring one third of the directors to retire
from office for re-election n each year Accordingly in the upcoming Annual General Meeting Christopher Philips,
John Molloy and John Macaulay will offer themselves for electton As stated above t 1s considered that the Board 1s
appropriately constituted While no change to the Articles of Association 1s or has been proposed n respect of
retiring and re-election of directors, it 1s the intention of the Board to ensure that all directors submut themselves for
election at intervals of no more than three years The other sigmficant commitments of the non-execunve directors are
given m the directors and advisors section  The commtiee met twice during the year
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Audit Committee

The Board has an Audit Commuttee comprised of John Molloy as Chairman, Harvey Shulman and Ronald Stirling
{whose qualifications are listed in the Directors listing on pages 19-20 The Audit Committee met with the external
auditors as required in order to review the resuits of the audit prior to the submission of the financial statements to and
approval by the Board of Directors The Audit Committee also reviews other 1ssues with the auditors, such as
recommendations for improvements 1n the Group’s internal financial controls and the adequacy of accounting policies
The committee met twice during the peried

The Committee 1s responsible for monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group and any formal
announcements relating to the Group’s performance and reviewing any sigmficant reporting judgements contained n
them and for reviewing the Group’s wternal financial controls The Commuittee 15 also responsible for making
recommencations to the Board for it to put forward to the shareholders for their approval at the Annual General
Meeting n relation to the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors The Committee 1s also responsible for the review and
momitoring of the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and the etfectiveness of the audit process,
taking into consideration the relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements

" The Audit Commuttee” takes mte account relevant ethical guidance regarding the provision 6f non-audit services by the

Group’s auditors

Remuneration Commuttee

The Board has a Remuneration Commuttee chaired by Harvey Shulman, the activities of which are covered in the
Directors’ remuneration report on pages 12 to 17

Going concern

Based on normal business planming and control procedures, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue m operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly they continue to
adopt the going concern basis 1n preparing the financial statements

Relations with shareholders

The Company has regular meetings with 1ts major and nstitutional shareholders The Notice of the Annual General
Meeting 1s sent out to all shareholders with the Annual Report and Accounts i1 each year Save for any unforeseen
circumstances, all members of the Board attend the Annual General Meeting to meet shareholders and to answer or
deal with any questions or 1ssues raised

Accounting and audit

The Statement of directors’ responsibilities wn respect of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements 1s set
out on page 18

Deloitte & Touche LLP provided tax services during the period The Audit Comrmuttee 1s satisfied that auditor
objectivity was maintained through the level of fees paid for this work, the scope of procedures and the composition
of the team that undertook this work

10
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Internal control

The Board 1s responsible for assessing risk and for mamntamning and reviewing the effectiveness of nternal controls 1n
order to safeguard the assets of the Group Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the
business and the risks to which 1t 15 exposed and, by their nature, can provide reasonable but not absolute assurances
agamst material misstatement or loss  Any weaknesses that have been identified during the audit are in the process of
being rectified At Group level key procedures include weekly monitoring of cash flows, sales and margins, weekly
financial highlights and analysis and monthly reviews of management accounts against previously approved budgets
and prior year performance The appointment of experienced and professional staff and the refinement of the annual
budget process and cash flow forecasting are important elements tn the process of internal financial controls The si1ze
of the Group does not ment having an mnternal audit function The executive directors, however, are closely mnvolved
in the business of the Group on a day-to-day basis Thus the Board 1dentifies, evaluates and manages the significant
nisks faced by the Group These procedures have been in place for the period under review and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements This accords with Turnbull guidance

The Board has formally reviewed and documented the policies and procedures for risk management and for internal
control, and believes that where operational and/or financial risks and/or internal control weaknesses have been
identified, appropriate measures are being put in place to deal with and control such situations . .. ., . . w......

Statement of comphance

The Board considers that 1t has complied with the Code provisions set out in Section 1 of the 2006 FRC Combined
Code of Corporate Governance throughout the period ended 5 Apnil 2008, except that the Board has yet to implement
a policy and procedures for “whistle blowing™ as required by Code Section C3 4
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Directors’ remuneration report

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 7a to the Compames Act 1985 The report also meets the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonity and describes how the Board has
appled the principles relating to the directors’ remuneration  As required by the Act, a resolution to approve the
report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at which the financial statements will be
approved

The Act requires the auditors to report to the Company’s members on certain parts of the Directors’ remuneration
report and to state whether in thewr opinion those parts of the report have been properly prepared 1n accordance with
the Compames Act 1985 The report has therefore been divided into separate sections tor audited and unaudited
information

Unaudited information
Remuneration Committee

The Company has. established a Remuneration..Commuttee which 1s consututed..in accordance..with the.
recommendations of the Combined Code The role of the Remuneration Commuttee 1s o set the remuneration policy
for the executive directors of the Company and to review proposals for other semor executives as appropriate
Specifically, the Remuneration Commuttee determimes the base salanies and benefits (including bonus schemes and
share option incentives) and agrees employment agreements and other terms and conditions

None of the Commuittee has any personal financial interest (other than as shareholders), conflicts of nterests arising
from cross-directorships, or day-to-day involvement m running the business The Committee makes recommendations
to the Board No director plays a part in any discussion about his or her own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee consists solely of independent non-executive directors  The members of the commuittee
during the period ended 5 April 2008 were Harvey Shutman as Chairman, John Molloy and Ronald Stitling  The
Remuneration Commuittee met twice during the period

The Remuneration Commuttee 1s advised internally by Ray Harrs, Executive Director, and externally by the
Company’s lawyers and by Boyes Turner, employment lawyers The Remuneration Commmttee can call upon
addmonal external advisors as required Durning the period Boyes Turner also provided advice on employment policy

Remuneration policy for the executive directors

The remuneration packages are designed to motivate, reward and retain executive directors of high quality and to be
competitive 1 terms of market practice Performance related elements of the remuneration package aun to align the
interests of the executive directors with those of shareholders through the use of performance targets and share
options

In order to motivate the executive team for future achievement, an element of remuneration 1s dehvered through the
share option schemes that are based on share price performance The bonus scheme 15 designed to reward the
achievement of stretching but realistic targets

The compenents of the executive directors’ remuneration comprise base salary, bonus scheme, a contnibutory pension,
benefits and share options

Executive directors are entitled to retamn any remuneration earned from non-executive positions with other companies

Base salary

Base salary for each executive director 1s set by the Remuneration Commuttee and 15 reviewed but not necessarily
increased annually Determiming factors are individual performance, changes in job responsibiliies, changes wn
market place and general economic conditions
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Bonus scheme

The bonus scheme for executive directors 15 structured to reward the achievement of results aganst set objectives
The level of bonus payable to the executive directors was determined by performances aganst forecast and the
achievement of performance targets for new business developments The bonus scheme allows for the amount of
bonus to be determined by the Remuneration Commuttee Such bonuses are not pensionable Further details of
bonuses paid during the period are set out on page 16

Pensions
Pension arrangements for executive directors are based on payments by the Company to defined contribution schemes
if matched by the executive director No pension contributions were made in the period to 5 April 2008

Benefits

Benefits for certain executive directors include a Company car or cash payment 1n hieu thereof, life assurance, income
protection msurance and private medical insurance The Life Assurance and Income Protection scheme 1s operated on

wser wn.d Group. wide basis.within which the directors.arecncluded .The.Life Assurance.scheme.covers .four times. the

executive director’s salary and twice for all other employees The Income Protection scheme provides cover to
protect individuals’ income in the event that they are incapacitated to carry out their occupational duties  The value of
these benefits, excluding Life Assurance and Income Protection which are purchased on a Group wide basis, are
detailed on page 15.

Share option schemes

The Company operates an Unapproved Share Opuion Scheme and an EMI Share Option Scheme in which all
employees participate subject to certain qualifying criteria  All executive directors are eligible to participate in both
schemes Shares under the schemes vest and become exercisable 1n three equal tranches dependent on the attainment
of proposed market capitalisations of the Group, subject to the Remuneration Committee’s approval, on each twelve
mornth anmiversary from the date of grant

The Company does not operate any long-term incentive schemes other than the share option schemes described above
No sigmificant amendments are proposed to be made to the terms and conditions of any entitiement of a director to
share options
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Performance graph

The graph below shows the performance of the Group, measured by total shareholder return compared with the UK

FTSE Small Cap index This has been chosen as the comparator index as 1t 1s considered the most appropriate
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Executive directors’ contracts

It 15 the policy of the Company that employment contracts for executive directors will normally include notice periods
on termination by the Company of no longer than twelve months There are no agreements for compensation on
termination beyond the six months’ notice pertod

Michael Morris has an employment coniract dated 1 January 2004 which will continue untd terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than s1x months’ notice  His current base salary 1s £230,000 per annum plus a performance
related bonus and he 1s provided with a Company car or cash in lieu thereof and private medical insurance (for himself
and his family) Pension contributions are made to a personal pension scheme up to 5% of salary, subject to a
personal contribution of 3% of gross basic salary 830,000 share options were granted in the period ended 31 March
2005 which vest and become exercisable over three years They expire on 20 February 2015

Chris Phillips has an employment contract dated 1 February 2008 which will continue until terminated by erther party
giving to the other not less than six months’ notice His current base salary is £100,000 per annum

Ray Harris has an employment contract dated 1 August 2007 which will continue until terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than six months” notice  His current base salary 1s £50,000 per annum

John Macdulay has dh'eniployimént contract dated 10 September 2007 which will continue’ uatil termunated by either
party giving to the other not less than one months’ notice His current base salary 1s £90,000 per annum

Executive directors retain fees in respect of non-executive director roles at other companies In the perrod these
amounted to £8,000 and £20,416 for Ray Harris and Chris Phillips respectively

Non-executive directors

It 1s the policy of the Company to appoint non-executive directors on the basis of a twelve-month rolling contract No
compensation 1s payable to any non-executive director 1if therr appointment 1s terminated early

Non-executive directors” fees are positioned to be competitive with those paid by other UK listed companies of a
simiular size, and are set at a level to attract individuals with the required experience and ability to make a substantial
contribution to the Company The Board of Directors approves the remuneration of the non-executive drirectors No
director is present when his own remuneration is under discussion

No benefits are payable to any of the non-executives, and they do not participate n any share option or pension
schemes

Ronald Stirling, Harvey Shulman and John Molloy have letters of appointment dated 1 October 2005 and | October
2005 and 1 September 2007 respectively, for an mitial fixed period of one year and rolling thereafter, terminable by
either party giving the other notice of one month

Audited information
Aggregate directors’ remuneration
The total remuneration for directors during the period was as follows

5 April 2008 31 March 2007

£7000 £°000
Emoluments 545 534
Benefits 9 10
Performance-related bonuses 800 1,128
Total n respect of the period 1,354 1,672
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Directors’ emoluments

Fee/salary Bonuses Benefits Total Total
2008 2007
£ £ £ £ £
Executive directors
Michael Morris 260,000 750,000 8,200 1,018,200 1,120,180
John Harrison (resigned 25 July 2007) 75,000 — 680 75,680 372,060
Christopher Phillips
(Executive Director from 18 February 2008) 16,666 h h 16,666 h
John Macaulay(appointed 10 March 2008) 5,000 - - 5,000 -
Ray Harns(appointed Executive Director 25
July 2007) 43,333 - - 43,333 -
Non-executive directors
Ronald Stirling _ . L 30,000 - - _ 30,000 38,500
Christopher Phullips
{Executtve Director from 18 February 2008) 39,167 h - 39,167 61,000
Ray Harrnis(appointed Executive Director
25 July 2007) 11,667 50,000 61,667 42,000
Harvey Shulman 30,000 - - 30,000 38,500
John Molloy(apponted 1 September 2007) £4,583 - - 14,583 -
Total 545,416 200,000 8,880  1,354296 1,672,240

C Phullips’ fees were mvoiced by and paid to Arlon Consulting Limited, to 31 January 2008
H Shulman’s fees are mnvoiced by and paid to Graham Harvey Solicitors
R Stirling’s fees are invoiced by and paid to Fastnet Limited

The bonuses payable to Michael Morris and Ray Harris relate to performance and to the acquisition of Greenmark 1n
the prior year

Directors’ share options

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares
in the Company granted to or held by the directors No options have been exercised during the period

Details of options for directors who served during the period are as follows

1 April 5 April Exercise Date from
2007 Granted Exercised 2008 Price which Expiry
‘000 ‘000 “000 ‘000 p exercisable Date
Executive directors:
M Momis  Unapproved 830 - - 830 12875 21/02/05  20/02/15

Details of the market conditions relating to the exercise of these options are set out 1 the Share Based Payments note
25 There have been no variations to the terms and conditions or performance criteria for share options during the
financial period

The market price of the ordmary shares at 5 Apnil 2008 was 16p Durmg the period under review the highest and
lowest share prices were 191p and 13p respectively




Marchpole Holdings plc

Directors’ remuneration report

Directors’ pension entitlements

One of the executive directors 1s eligible to receive pension contributions to money purchase schemes provided that he
makes personal contnibutions No contributions were paid by the Company m respect of the current executive
directors during the current or prior year

Approval

The Directors’ remuneration report was approved by the Board on 4 August 2008, and signed on 11s behalf by

AN o

Harvey Shulman
Chairman of the Remuneration Committeg

4 August 2008
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responstble for prepaning the Annual Report, Directors' Remuneration Report and the financial
statements 1n accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year The directors are required
by the IAS Regulation to prepare the group financial statements under IFRSs (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and have also elected to prepare the parent company financial statements 1 accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union The financial statements are also required by law to be properly prepared n accordance with
the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the
company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful representation of the
effects of transactions, other events and conditions 1n accordance with the defimtions and recognition crniteria for
assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out n the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the
preparatton and presentation of financial statements’ In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be
achieved by compliance with all apphicable IFRSs However, directors are also requured to

- properly select and apply accounting policies,

- present information, including accounting policies, 1n a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information, and

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements 1n IFRSs are msufficient to
enable users to understand the 1mpact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financial performance

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial posthion of the company and group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wrregularities

The directors are responstble for the mamtenance and mtegnty of the corporate and financial information included on
the company's website Legisiation 1n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation i other junsdictions

Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm to the best of our knowledge

1 the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, habilities, financ:al position and profit or
loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consohdation taken as a whole, and

2 the diwrectors’/rgport and chairman’s report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and t?e position of the company and the undertakings included 1n the censohdation taken as a whole, together
with a descpiptign of the principal nisks and uncertainties they face

an Finance Dlrectori

1S John Macaulay

By order/

Depu
Michael
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Directors

Christopher Phillips (aged 57)
Executive Chairman

Christopher was appointed as Non-Executive Chairman on 16 May 2002 and became Executive Chairman on 18
February 2008 He has extensive experience of Fmancial Services and has published annual reviews of Far Eastern
Banks He holds a number of non-executive directorships, including Phdlips & Associates Limuted, Blueroom
Properties Limited, Your Space Plc, Your Space UK Limited, Adrenalin Media Plc, IC G Securities Limited, Niche
Group Plc, Froglet Dotcom Limited, , Kingsbridge Residential Limited, Reurement Care Group Liumited, Microcap
Plc, Central European Acquisitions Plc He jomed Colliers RH in March 1998, then the department moved to Colliers
CRE 1n July 2000 and then he moved across to start up Colliers Capital UK Limuted 1n April 2003 He left Colliers on
30th September 2005 and he 15 now Chairman of Deutche European Real Estate Plc He has other non-executive
directorships 1n property and business service

Michael Morris (aged 62)
Executive Deputy Chairman

Michael was appomnted as an Executive Director on 22 October 2003 A successful entrepreneur, founder and former
CEO of Marchpole with over 30 years experience within the industry Successfully formalised the first Yves Saint
Laurent licence agreement 1in 1983 and played a key role in the successful development of Marchpole over the years
He has played an important part 1n the turnaround of the Company and employed his experience 1n the industry 1o
strengthen key areas, such as production, sales and operations He was also mstrumental in the acquisition of the Jean-
Charles de Castelbajac label Current directorships inciude, Mulibest Limited and Semivale Limited

John Macaulay A.C.A (aged 51)
Finance Director

John was appointed to the Board on |0 March 2008 Most recently John was Group Finance Director of AIM listed
Creative Education Plc, before joining Marchpole as Group Financial Officer on 10 September 2007 Prior to hus role
at Creative Education, John was Group Finance Director for International Clothing Design Ltd, a privately owned
clothing group mvolved m the design, sourcing and manufacture of clothes with operations throughout Europe and the
Far East

Raymond Harris (aged 67)
Executive Director

Raymond was appointed to the Board on 22 October 2003 and became Executive Director on 25 July 2007 He
quahified as a Chartered Accountant in 1961 and has since been either Principal or Partner until his retirement  Current
directorships mclude Your Space Plc, AIM-traded, Key Real Estates Ltd(Plus Markets), Deutche Furopean Real
Estates Plc

Ronald Edward Stirling (aged 67)
Non-Executive Director

Ronald joined Marchpole with a wealth of experience within the fashion industry having founded the Stirling Cooper
Fashion Group in 1968 Stichng Cooper traded as a manufacturer, wholesaler and retail fashion clothing Company
with 11 retail outlets and 20 n-store concessions Since his retirement in 1991, he has concentrated on s farmly’s
private investment Company which has made a number of investments 1n early stage companies From February 1995
until October 2002, Ronnie was the President of Kasper ASL Europe Limited a subsidiary of a large USA Fashion
Company selling the products of Anne Klen, Albert Nippon and Kasper ASL and opened 1n-store shops within major
stores in the UK and Europe He then became a consultant of Kasper ASL from October 2002 until October 2003




Marchpole Holdings plc

Directors

Harvey Shulman, LL.B, LL.M, (aged 61)
Non-Executive Director

Harvey brings extensive corporate and legal experience to the Board Harvey tramed as a solicitor and has been
involved n property acquisition and management since 1988 He 15 a partner 1n Graham Harvey, solicitors, with
which he has been associated since 1972

John Molloy ( aged 62 )
Non-Executive Director

John was appointed to the Board on 1 Sepiember 2007 John has a wealth of experience n the retail clothing industry
I a career that spans over 40 years with leading European clothing company C&A He specialised as a fashion buyer
in Men's, Ladies and Children's clothing, and established Ski-wear John most recently ran the Londen Buying Office .
for C & A Europe
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Marchpole Holdings plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Marchpole Holdings plc for the period ended 5 April 2008 which
comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolhidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of changes m
shareholders’ equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 30 These Group financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the information 1n
the directors’ remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Marchpele Holdings plc for the period
ended 5 April 2008

Thus report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditors” report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibihty to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the Group
financial statements in accordance with applicable.law and-International Financial.Reporting Standards (IERSS) a5 s nss coraans sornar
adopted by the European Unton are set out 1n the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

A, v R

t

Our responsibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements 1n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opimon as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, whether the
Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 1985 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation and whether the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report described as having been audited has
been properly prepared 1 accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the Group financial statements  The information given 1n
the Directors” Report includes that specific information presented 1n the Chairman’s Statement that 1s cross referred
from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report  In additton we report to you if, in our opinion, we have
not recetved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
director's remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisions
of the 2006 Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we
report if it does not We are not required to constder whether the board's statements on inteenal control cover all risks
and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures or its nisk and
control procedures

We read the other information contained 1n the annual report as described 1n the contents section and consider whether
1t 15 consistent with the audited Group financial statements We consider the implications for our report 1f we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the Group financial statements Our
responsibibities do not extend to any further information cutside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures 1n the Group financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
Group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

21




EERRL T Sa S

Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Marchpole Holdings plc (continued)

We planned and performed our audit 50 as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary mn order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial
statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other rregularity or error In forrmng our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information 1n the Group financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited

QOpinion
In our opinion

o the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, i accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Unien, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 5 Apnil 2008 and of uts loss for the period then ended,

¢ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,

¢ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report described as having been audlted has been properly prepared n
~ "accordancé with the Compamies”Act*1 985, and =™ ==ot-~ #e2 T T -

» the information given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the Group financial statements
Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs

As explained 1n Note 2 to the Group financial statements, the Group 1n addition to complying with 1ts legal obligation
to comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the IFRSs as 1ssued by the
International Accounting Standards Board

In our opinion the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 5 April 2008 and of its loss for the period then ended

‘DC\GWHC oLTm..Lg_ L_,I_]D

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, United Kingdom

4 August 2008
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Marchpole Holdings plc

Consolidated income statement
For the period ended 5 April 2008

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs
Admnistrative expenses

Operating (loss)/profit
--Finance costs ~ -~ ~

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax

(Loss)/profit for the period

(Loss)/earnings per share

From continuing operations
Basic

Diluted

2008 2007
Restated
Note £°000 £°000
4 44,749 90,534
(34,375) (63.470)
10,374 27,064
(2.622) (4,229
(12,492) (14,806)
(4,740) 8,029
7 srvren srernere (1,352) (1,730)
5 (6,092) 6,299
8 669 (2,126)
4 (5,423) 4,173
11 (199p) 153p
11 (i99p) 153p
23




Marchpole Holdings plc

Consolidated balance sheet
As at 5 April 2008

Note
Non-current assets
Goodwill 12
Other mtangible assets 12
Property, plant and equipment 13
Current assets
Inventones 14
Trade and other receivables 15
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16
Current tax habilities
Obligations under finance leases 20
Bank overdrafts and loans 17
Deferred tax habilities 18
Non-current habihities
Deferred tax liabihues 18
Obligations under finance leases 20
Loans 17
Total habihttes
Net current (habilities)/assets
Net assets
Equity
Share capital 9

Share premium account
Other reserves

Hedging and trans
Retained earmings

Total equity

!

The finagcia
o ff (Y
Michatl Mor John Macaula

2008 2007
Restated

£°000 £000
6,796 6,190
3,386 4,020
1,113 1,088
11,295 11,298
6,189 3,797
10,964 14,284
1,404 2,342
18,557 20,423
29,852 31,721
(10,630) (9,498)
(1,883) (2,604)
(130) -
(10,662) (2,512)
(140) (173)
(23,465) (14,787}
(431) (908)
(300) -
(125) (3.541)
(856) (4,449)
(24,321) (19,236)
(4,908) 5,636
5,531 12,485
1,367 1,373
2,809 2,800
84 374
(1,311) (751)
2,282 8,689
5,531 12,485

nts were approved by the board of directors on 4 August 2008 They were signed on 1ts behalf
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Marchpole Holdings plc

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the period ended 5 April 2008

As at 31 March 2006

Shares 1ssued n the period

Credit in respect of share option
charge

Profit for the period

Foreign exchange movement

Dividends

As at 31 March 2007

Shares 1ssued 1n the period

Purchase of own shares

Reallocation

Cred:t 1n respect of share option
charge

Loss for the period

Foreign exchange movement

Dividends

As at 5 April 2008

Note

Other reserves relate to provisions for share options

The Group purchased 55,000 shares from the market in the period, which are snll held at the period end £69,000,

Share Retained
Share premiuvm Other  Translation  earnings
capital account reserve Reserve  Restated Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

1,360 2,798 290 (212) 5,537 9,773
13 2 - - - 15

- - 84 - - 84

- - - - 4,173 4,173

] ] ; (539) - (539)

. . - - (1,021) (1,021)
1,373 2,800 374 (751) 8,689 12,485

- 3 - - - 3

. - - - (69) (69}

(6) 6 . - - -

- - 10 - - 10

R - g - (5,423) (5.423)

- - - (560) - (560)

- - - - {915) 915)

1,367 2,809 384 (1,311 2,282 5.531

representing the amount paid for the own shares held at the period end, has been netted off against retained earnings
25




--—Financing activities-

Marchpole Holdings plc

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the period ended 5 April 2008

Net cash from operating activities
Investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangibles

Purchase of own shares

Acquisition of subsidary

Net cash used in investing activities

Dividends paid

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of obligations under finance leases
Proceeds on 1ssue of shares

Proceeds from sale and leaseback of assets
New bank loans raised

{Pecrease)/increase 1n bank facilities

Net cash (used)/from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash and cash equivalents per balance sheet
Overdrafts repayable on demand

Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement

2008 2007
Note £°000 £000
22 (4,657 12,518
(197} (282)
- (63)
(69) -
- (3,305)
(266) (3,650
(915) (1,021)
931 (404)
- (16)
3 15
225 -
1,683
{1,113) {6.535)
2,731) (6,278)
(7,654) 2,590
2,342 (248)
(5,312) 2,342
1,404 2,342
(6,716) -
(5.312) 2,342
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Marchpole Holdings plc

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Period ended 5 April 2008

1. General information

Marchpole Holdings plc 1s a Company incorporated m Great Britain under the Compames Act 1985 The
registered office 15 19-20 Berners Street London WI1T 3LW  The nature of the Group’s operations and
principal activitzes are set out 1n the directors’ report

These financial statements are presented in Great British Pounds (“GBP”) because that 15 the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates Foreign operations are included 1n accordance
with the policies set out in note 2

The comparative balance sheet and mcome statement have been restated o reflect the finalisation of the
acquisition accounting of Greenmark Limited, see note 21

The following standards and interpretations have become effective during the period ended 5 April 2008

- -— — o _JFRS7 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’, and the related amendment to IAS 1.‘Presentation ofs e sxmias oo

Financial Statements” on capital disclosures This introduces new disclosures relating to financial
mstruments but does not have any impact on their classification or valuation

e IFRICS ‘Scope of IFRS2’, provides gutdance where the consideration received for equity instruments
1ssued 1s less than their fair value so as to assess whether they fall within the scope of IFRS2 This
standard has not impacted the Group’s financial statements

e JFRICY ‘Reassessment of Embedded Dertvatives® provides further guidance on the assessment of
embedded derivatives and 1s not relevant to the Group's operations

¢ JFRIC!O ‘Internm Financial Reporting and Impairment’ prohtbits certain impairment losses recognised
1n the interim period to be reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date This has not had any impact on
the Group’s financial statements

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations are n 1ssue
but are not yet effective

e [FRSS8 ‘Operating Segments’

e TFRICI1 ‘Group Treasury Share Transactions’
+ IFRICI2 *Service Concession Arrangements’
¢ IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’

e IFRICI4 ‘IAS19 — The Limut on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimimum Funding Requirements and theiwr
Interaction’

¢ JAS| (Amendment) ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
¢ IAS23 {Amendment) ‘Borrowing Costs’

¢ IFRS2 (Amendment) ‘Share-based Payment’

+ IFRS3 (Amendment) ‘Business Combinations’

The directors anticipate the adoption of these standards and interpretations n future periods will have no material
impact on the financial statements of the group except for additional segment disclosures of the group IFRS 8 comes
into effect for periods commencing on or after | Fanuary 2009 and the financial statement presentation changes under
TAS | (revised 20077/2008) which also comes into effect for periods beginnming on or after 1 January 2009
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Period ended 5 April 2008

2.

PR

Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared tn accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”} The financial statements have also been prepared n accordance with IFRSs adopted for use in the
European Umion and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments The principal accounting policies adopted are set out betow

Basis of conselidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company Control 1s achieved where the Company has power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an investee so as to obtain benefits from 1its activities

PR PP L_ i RS —— e PR

The results of subsidiaries acq'u.lr;:d du?mg the pErlod are included i the consolidated ncome staternent from
the effective date of acquisition

Where necessary, adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring the accounting
policies used into hine with those used by the Group

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation
Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries 1s accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 1s
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group 1n exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination The acquiree’s identifiable assets, llabilities and contingent
habilities that meet the condstions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date

Goodwill

Goodwill anising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the 1dentifiable assets and lhabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition  Provisional fair
values are finalised within twelve months of acqmsition  Goodwill 1s imtatly recogmsed as an asset at cost an
15 subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses  Goodwill which 1s recognised as an
asset 15 reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment is recogmised immediately in profit or loss
and 1s not subsequenily reversed

Goodwill anising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK
GAAP amounts

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition 1s taken to the Income Statement m the period 1n which the acquisitio
took place

Revenue recognition

Turnover represents sales of apparel to external customers at invoiced amounts net of VAT, discounts and
estimated returns Royalty income generated on sales by hicensees s also included in turnover

Turnover with regards to apparel sales 15 recogmised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been passed to the buyer, at the point of delivery Royaky income 1s recognised n hne with the terms of the
license contract

d

n
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recogmsed as assets of the Group at their fair value or, 1f lower, at the
present value of the mimimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding
hability to the lessor 1s included n the balance sheet as a finance lease obhigation Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
mnterest on the remaining balance of the hability Finance charges are charged directly against income

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease _ P

Intangible assets

Externally acquired customer relationships and licences are recognised as intangible assets when they are
controlled through contractual or other legal rights, and the fair value can be reliably measured Their fair value
15 estimated using future cash flows, discounted to thewr present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the brand for which estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted Their cost, measured at fair value, 1s amortised on a straight line basis over
their useful economic lives being 7 5 to 10 years or the period of the agreement

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of 1ts tangible and intangible assets to
determme whether there 1s any indication that any asset has suffered an impairment loss  If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets 1s estimated n order to determne the extent of the impairment loss
(1if any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs An intangible asset
with an indefinute vseful life 1s tested for impairment annually or where there s an indication that the asset may
be impaired

The recoverable amount 15 the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use In assessing value n use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the ime value of money and the nisks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than the carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment
loss 1s recogmised as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating unit) 1s
increased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogmsed for the
asset (cash-generating umit) i prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 15 recognised as income
immediately
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

The 1ndividual financial statements of each Group Company are prepared in local currencies For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group Company are expressed in
GBP, which s the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements

In preparing the financial statements of the individua) companies, transactions n foreign currencies are recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets
and hiabilities that are denominated 1n foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined Non-monetary items that are measured n
terms of historical cost n a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences ansing on the settlement of monetary 1tems, and on the retranslation of monetary 1tems,
are included 1n profit or loss for the period Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation ot non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period  For non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss 1s also recogmised durectly m equity

In order to economically hedge 1ts exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters mnto forward
contracts and options, as it 1s never the Group’s intention to carry a significant currency risk

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and expense tems are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used Exchange differences arising, if

any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve  Such translation differences are
recognised as income or as expenses n the period (n which the operation 1s disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entuly are treated as assets and
habilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate  The Group has elected to treat goodwill and fair
value adjustments anising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRSs as sterling-denominated assets
and hiabilities

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due
Payments made to state-managed returement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
schemes where the Group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising 1n a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred 1ax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the period Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
1n the income statement because it excludes 1items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 1n other
periods and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s liability for current tax 15
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilities 1n the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 18 accounted for using
the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax habilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recogrused to the extent that i1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utihsed Such assets and habilities are not
recogmsed 1f the temporary difference arises from the imtial recogmtion of goodwill or from mnitial recognition
{other than in business combinations) of other assets and habilities 1n a transaction that affects neither the
taxable nor accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments n subsidianies,
except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets i1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the hability s settled or
the asset 15 realised, and 1s not discounted Deferred tax 1s charged or credited 1 the income statement, except
when 1t relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in
equity

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable night to set off current tax assets

against current tax habilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authornity and the
Group intends to settle 1ts current tax assets and Liabilities on a net basis

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment
loss

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write oft the cost of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method, on the following bases

Leasehold iumprovements 33%
Fixtures, fitings and equipment 20%/33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

The gamn or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recogmsed in income
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct materials and, where
apphicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred (n bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition  Cost 1s measured using the weighted average method Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price  Cost of work in progress and fimshed goods includes payments made
under contracts with designers relating to future seasons ranges

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Trade receivables

Appropniate allowances for esumated urrecoverable amounts are recogmsed n profit or loss when there 15
objective evidence that the asset 1s impaired Trade recewvables are measured at fair value

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received Finance charges are accounted
for on an accrual basis in the income statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying
amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period m which they arise

Trade payables

Trade payables are mitially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
eftective interest rate method

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly hquid
investments that are readity convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value

Dernwvanive financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group’s activities expose 1t primarily to the financial nisks of changes 1n foreign currency exchange rates
Forward foreign currency contracts

The Group uses forward foreign currency contracts to economically hedge its exposure to exchange rate
movements on merchandise purchases denominated in foreign currencies The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes The Group’s derivative financial instruments are included at fair
value The Group has not applied cash flow hedge accounting, therefore changes in the fair value of the hedging
mstrument are recogmsed directly in the income statement
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 15 probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect 1s material

Royalties paid

Royalties paid by the Group under the terms of licence agreements are charged to the financial statements 1n the
period 1n which the turnover they relate to 15 generated

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of
grant The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions

Fair value 1s measured by use of a binormial model The expected life used in the model has been listed, based
on management’s best estumates for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting pelicies, which are described n note 2, management has
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised n the financial
statements

Intangible assets

Externally acqured intangible assets include the value ascribed to customer relationships  Such assets are
recogntsed when they are controlled through contractual or other legal rights, and the fair value can be reliably
measured Their fair value 1s estimated using risk adjusted future cash flows discounted using appropriate
discount rates  These future cash flows are based on business forecasts and are therefore inherently
judgemental Future events can cause the values of these intangible assets to be impared

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment, or sooner if there 1s
an ndication that the assets might be impaired Impairment 1s determined with reference to the mgher of net
realisable value and value in use, measured by reference to nisk-adjusted future cash flows Significant
assumptions are made in calculating these future cash flows, such as long-term growth rates and discount rates
Changes 1n these assumptions could change the outcomes of the impairment reviews

Fair values

The fair value of acquired assets and habihities are calculated with reference to appropriate measures ncluding
onginal cost, usability, realisable values and rehable estimates of likely settlements / payments Adjustments
have also been made to align values with apphcable accounting standards
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provisions

The quantification of certain hiabilities within provisions for legal costs in relation to certain claims have been
estimated Such liabilittes depend on the specific circumstances pertaiming to each obligation which 1s not
controlled by the company

Inventory valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, as set out 1n the accounting policy above
These values incorporate estimates of cost 1n bringing stock to its current condition and locatien and, where
appropriate provisions reducing the value below cost and are therefore subject to the judgements of the
directors Changes in customer demand or other trading conditions could give rise to future changes n value of
inventory held

4. Geographical segments . s s arrarnn e e . o o

The Group operates 1n the single business segment of high fashion apparel design, marketing and distribution
The Group has sales operations located 1n the UK, Europe and America, and a procurement office in Hong
Kong The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales, operating profit/(loss) and net assets by
geographical market, irrespective of the ongmn of the goods/services

Europe &
UK & Rest of North
2008 Ireland World America Consolidated
Revenue £°000 £°000 £000 £000
Sales revenue 33,578 3,550 4,771 41,899
Royalty income 1,985 865 - 2,850
Total revenue 35,563 4415 4,771 44,749
Cost of sales (28,578) (2,083) (3,714) (34,375)
Gross profit 6,985 2,332 1,057 10,374
Expenses (7.912) (4,952) (1,784) (14,648)
927 (2,620) (727
Amortisation charge on unallocated corporate
dssets - - - {466)
Operating profit/(loss) (4,740)
Finance costs (1,352)
Loss before tax (6,092)
Taxation 669
Loss after tax (5,423
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Geographical segments (continued)

2008
Other information

Caputal additions
Depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation on unallocated corporate assets

Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets
Conschdated total assets

Liabilities
Segment habiities

Unallocated corporate habilities

Consolidated total Liabilities

2007
Revenue

Sales Revenue
Royalty Income

Total revenue
Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Expenses

Operating Profit

Net finance costs

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit after tax

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Period ended 5 April 2008

Europe &
UK & Rest of North
Ireland Weorld America Consolidated
£°000 £000 £000 £000
107 62 28 197
164 161 79 404
- - - 466
11,276 6,131 4,291 21,698
8.154
29,852
18,533 3,594 1,889 24,016
305
24,321
UK & Europe &
Ireland Rest of North Consolidated
Restated World America Restated
£000 £°000 £000 £°000
74,643 5,969 8.462 89,074
552 866 42 1,460
75,195 6,835 8,504 90,534
(54,652) (2,661} (6,157 (63,470)
20,543 4,174 2,347 27.064
(11,646) (5,127 (2,262) (19,035)
8,897 (953) 85 3,029
(1,730)
6,299
(2,126}
4,173
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4.

Geographical segments (continued)

UK & Europe &

Ireland Rest of North Consolidated
2007 Restated World America Restated
Other information £'000 £000 £°000 £°000
Capital additions 55 42 185 282
Depreciation and amortisation 165 204 327 696
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 12,275 5,616 5,457 23,348
Unallocated corporate assets - e e et b e e - 8,373
Consolidated total assets 31,721
Liabilities
Segment habilities 12,161 2,747 3,108 18,016
Unallocated corporate Liabilities 1,220
Consolidated total habilities 19,236
(Loss)/profit before tax for the period
(Loss)/profit before tax for the period has been arrived at after (crediting)/charging
2008 2007
Restated
£°000 £000
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 34,375 63,470
Depreciation of owned assets 330 335
Amortisation of intangible assets (included within administrative expenses) 540 361
Share-based payments 10 84
Other staff costs {see note 6) 6,991 7,287
Auditors remuneration see below 293 474
Auditors remuneration
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audut of the company’s 11 10
annual accounts
Fees payable to the company’s auditors and their associates for other
services to the group
The audit of the company’s subsidianies pursuant to legislation 252 150
Tax services 30 13
Due diligence and sponsorship fees for the purchase of subsidaries - 301
36




¥
NN M BN I N N I E N T BN BN EBE B O BE BN OB Y B BN ae
.
,
i

Marchpole Holdings plc
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Period ended S April 2008

6. Staff costs

The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) was

2008 2007
Number Number
Corporate 31 20
Design 26 26
Operations 41 60
Sales and marketing 39 25
137 131
£7000 £000
Thewr aggregate remuneration comprised - - AT omm -
Wages and salaries 6,205 6,252
Social security costs 756 949
Other pension costs (see note 26) 30 36
Share-based payments 10 84
7,001 7,371
7. Finance costs
2008 2007
£°000 £000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 1,282 963
Arrangement fees 70 767
Total finance costs 1,352 1,730
8. Tax
2008 2007
Income tax (credit)/expense for the period £000 £°000
Current tax - 2,058
Prior period adjustment 201 (121
Foreign tax - current period 42 127
Deferred tax credit (note 18)
- Onigination and reversal of temporary differences =110 62
Income tax (credit)/expense for the period (669) 2,126

Income tax 1s calculated at 30 9% (2007 30 %) of the estimated assessable profit for the period Taxauon for
other jurisdictions 15 calculated at the rates prevailing tn the respective jurisdictions

With effect from 1 April 2008 the UK corporation tax rate 1s 28% The rate of 28% (2007 30%}) has been used

to calculate the UK deferred tax balances An amount of £40,000 has been credited to the profit and loss
account 1n respect of this rate reduction
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8.

Tax (continued)

The total charge for the period can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit per the income statement as follows

{Loss)/profit before tax

Tax at domestic income tax rate of 30%
(2006 30%)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 1n
determining taxable profit

Losses icurred not relieved against UK profits

Adjustments to tax charge i respect of previous years

Tax effect of subsidiaries operating in other
Jurisdictions

Other tax adjustments

Domestic tax expense and effective tax rate for the

period

Share capital

Authorised:
35,999,991 ordinary shares of 5p each

Issued and fully paid:

27,342,912 (2007 27,337,412) ordinary shares of Sp each

2008 2007
£°000 % £000 Kz,
(6,092) 6,299
(1,828) (30%) 1,890 30%
211 3% 288 5%
1,201 20% (54) (1%)
(201) (3%) (121) (2%)
(75) (1%) 127 2%
23 - (4) -
(669) (11%) 2,126 34%
2008 2007
£000 £°000
1,800 1,800
1,367 1,373

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income

A musatlocation between share capital and share premium of £6,000 has been corrected 1n the current period
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10.

11.

Dividends

Interim dividend paid 1 1p per ordinary share (2007 1 5p per share)
Final dividend for the prios period 2 25p per share (2007 2 25p per share)

There 15 no proposed final dividend for the pertod ended 5 Aprnil 2008 (2007

2 25p per share}

(Loss)/earnings per share

2008 2007
£000 £000
300 409
615 612
915 1,021

- 615

P s mw e e mqe g by ey aam

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share 1s based on the following data

(Loss)/earnings

(Loss)earnings for the purposes of basic (loss)/earnings per share
bemng net (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the parent

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic (loss)/earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
diluted (loss)/earnings per share

(Loss)/earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

2007

2008 Restated
£7000 £'000
(5,423) 4,173

Number Number

27,310,745 27,253 918

- 3.476

27,310,745 27,257,394

(19 9p) 15 3p
(19 9p) 15 3p

The prior period earnings have been restated due to a restatement of the fair value of net assets acquired in
excess of the fair value of purchase consideration on the acquisition of Greenmark Limited (see note 21)
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12,

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Other
Goodwill Intangibles Total
Restated Restated Restated
£°000 £°000 £000

Cost
At 1 Apnil 2006 3,925 2,518 6,443
Recognised on acquisiton of a subsidiary 2,364 2,000 4,364
Foreign currency translation (99) 63 (36)
At 31 March 2007 6,190 4,581 10,771
Foreign currency translation 606 (1em 439
At S Apnil 2008 T 6,796 4414 11,210
Amortisation
At | April 2006 - 201 201
Amortisation for the period - 361 361
Exchange differences - (1 n
At 31 March 2007 - 561 561
Amortisation for the period - 540 540
Exchange differences - a» (73)
At 5 April 2008 - 1,028 1,028
Carrying amount
AL5 Apnl 2008 6.796 3.386 10,182
At 31 March 2007 6,190 4,020 10,210

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are mdications that goodwill
might be impaired The key assumptions used 1n assessing geodwill included the use of business forecasts for
the next five years

Other 1ntangibles include values ascribed to customer relationships as well as values placed on brand names on
acquisition of subsidiaries or licences

The amortisation period for costs incurred on the Group's brand acquisition 1s the hife of the underlymg
franchise agreement, which 1s on average ten years The amortisation period for the intangible value of the
customer relationships valued on the acquisinon of Moda Amenica LLC 1 2006 and Greenmark in 200715 7 5
years and 10 years respectively The recoverable amount of this cash-generating umt 18 determmined from a
value-n-use calculation The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those regarding discount rates
(10%), growth rates (5%) and profitability Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit  The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts Changes in profitability are based on future expectations of
mternal efficiency gains and the market
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13.  Property, plant and equipment

Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2006

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary
Reclassification and wrnite offs

At 1 April 2007

Additions

Reclassification

Disposal / write-offs

Foreign exchange transactions

At 5 April 2008

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2006
Charge for the period
Reclassification and write otfs

At | Apnil 2007

Charge for the period
Reclass:fication

Disposal / write-offs

Foreign exchange transactions

At 5 Apnl 2008

Carrying amount
At S Apnil 2008

At 31 March 2007

Fixtures,
Leasehold fittings and

improvements equipment Total
£000 £000 £000
899 1,981 2,880
34 248 282

- 15 15
(13) (48) (61)
920 2,196 3,116
98 99 197
182« svunur (182) -
(939) (939)

96 55 151
1,296 1,229 2,525
226 1,529 1,755
126 209 335
- {62} (62)

352 1,676 2,028
241 89 330
41 (41) _
- (939) (939)
47 40 N
587 825 1,412
709 404 1,113
568 520 1,088

The Group’s obligations under finance leases (see note 20) are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which

have a carrying amount of £50,000 (2007 Nil)

14. Inventories

Raw matenals
Work-1n-progress
Finished goods

2008 2007

£°000 £000

397 178

581 364

5,211 3,255

6,189 3,797
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15. Trade and other receivables

2008 2007

£7000 £°000

Trade debtors 7,457 11,458
Other debtors 2,579 1,708
Prepayments 928 1,118
10,964 14,284

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade recetvables approximates to their fair value

Total trade receivables held by the Group at 5 April 2008 amounted to £7 5 mallion (2007 £11 5 muthon) Credit  « rvo. o-
terms which vary (14 to 90 days) are made available on invoices

Included in the Group trade receivables are debtors with a carrying amount of £2 0 mullion (2007 £5 2 million)
that are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as the amounts are still considered
recoverable, a breakdown of the ageing of these balances 1s given below

2008 2007

£°000 £°000

Past due — 0- 30 days 1,31%§ 1,332
Past due — 30 — 60 days 421 1,591
Past due — 60 - 90 days 254 1,133
Past due over 90 days 3 1,154
1,989 5,210

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances Trade receivables are not normally interest
bearing, although the Company may exercise the right to charge interest on overdue accounts

Credit risk

The Company’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables and financial
nstruments (see note 19) The Company’s credst risk 1s primanly attnbutable to 1ts trade receivables The
amounts presented 1n the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance for
impairment 1s made where there 1s an tdentified loss event which, based on previous experience,

15 evidence of a reduction in the recoverabihity of the cash flows

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Company and short-term bank deposits with an origimal
maturity of three months or less  The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value The credit
risk on hiqud tunds and derivative financial mstruments 1s hrmited because the counter-parties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of

counterparties and customers Credit risk 1s mitigated by accepting only the major retailers 1 each country as
customers, and obtaining, 1f available, credit insurance for sales
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16.

—
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.

Trade and other payables

Trade creditors and accruals
Employment tax

2008 2007
£000 £7000
10,039 8,914
591 584
10,630 9.498

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value
- L ot D 3 .. - v - O - r 4 -

Bank overdrafts and loans

Bank overdrafts
Non-convertible Loan notes
Convertible loan notes

Current habihities

Bank loans
Non-convertible loan notes
Convertible loan notes

Non-current habilities

Analysis of cash and borrowings within 1 year by
currency

5 April 2008

Cash, bank overdrafts and loans

31 March 2007
Cash, bank overdrafts and loans

Analysis of borrowings over | year by currency

5 April 2008
Loans — non current liabilities

31 March 2007
Loans — non current fabilities

2008 2007

£7000 £°000

8.662 2,512

1,000 -

1,000 -

10,662 2,512

125 1,541

- 1,000

- 1,000

125 3,541

GBP EUR USD Total

£'000 £7000 £°000 £7000
{12,592) (311) 3,645 (9,258)
(1,837 987 680 (170)

125 - - 125

3,541 - 3.541
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17.

Bank overdrafts and loans (continued)

2008 2007
% %
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows 729 658

Where there 15 a right of set off with a bank, positive cash balances have been netted against the overdrafts

The carrying value approximates fair value

Of the non-current loans shown above £0 1 mullion 15 repayable within one to two years (2007 £3 4 million) and
nil 18 repayable within two to three years (2007 £0 1 million) These amounts are stated at their full value

All amounts are repayable on demand The other principal features of the Group’s borrowings are as follows

)] In the UK, the Group’s facility 1s with HSBC Bank plc It s a composite facihity including overdrafts,
letters of credit, import finance loans, invoice financing, duty deferment bonds and cover for forward
foreign exchange contracts Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand, and are secured in the UK by a
debenture over the assets of the Group, cross guarantees, a general letter of negative pledge and a counter
indemnity wn respect of the duty deferment bonds The average effective mnterest rate on the facilities are
based on | 75% plus HSBC bank Sterhing base rate

{(n)  The Group also has a facility in the USA with Wells Fargo Century Wells Fargo Century has Uniform
Commercial Code filings (Liens) against recervables, inventory and fixed assets, i a composite facility
It also provides a letter of credit facility The effective interest rate 1s the bank base rate plus 0 5%

At 5 April 2008, the Group had available £0 4 milhion (2007 £1 3 million) of undrawn committed borrowing
facilities 1n respect of which all conditions precedent had been met

Loan notes were 1ssued as part of the purchase consideration of Greenmark Limited 1n the prior year Non-
convertible loan notes are guaranteed and bare nterest at the base rate of HSBC Bank Plc plus 2 4% They are
redeemable on the second anmiversary of the 1ssue date Converuble loan notes are unsecured, bear interest at
the base rate of HSBC Bank Plc and are convertible into a vaniable number of ordinary shares of the Company
at the second anniversary of the 1ssue date

If interest rates moved by 1% (on average over the year) the effect on the income statement for the period
would be £185,000 (2007 £263,000)
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18. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon
during the current and prior reporting period

Short-term Acquisition

timing intangible Total

differences Restated Restated

£°000 £°000 £'000

At 1 April 2007 (restated) {an 1,092 1,081
Charge/(credit) to income statement 57 (567) (510)
As 5 Apnil 2008 46 525 571

Within this total figure, £140,000 will reverse 1n the next twelve months, leaving £431,000 as a long term
hability

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused capital losses of £95 2m (2007 £95 2m) available for offset
against future chargeable gains No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these losses due to the
unpredictability of future chargeable gains  The capital losses may be carried forward indefinitely

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax hiabilities have not been recognised 1s insignificant  No hability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group 13 1n a position to control the timing of the reversal
of temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that such a difference will not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

At the balance sheet date the Group had unused tax losses of £6 1m available for offset aganst thewr future
profit No deferred tax has been recognised 1n respect of these losses due to the unpredictabilhity of future profit
streams
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19.

Currency risk

The Group utilises currency derivatives to economically hedge significant future transactions and cash flows
The Group 1s a party to a variety of foreign currency forward contracts and options in the management of 1its
exchange rate exposures The instruments purchased are primanly denomemated m the currenctes of the Group’s
principal markets

At the balance sheet date the total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that the
Group has commutted are as below

2008 2007

£000 £°000

Forward foreign currency contracts 2,214 4,405
Fair value of forward foreign currency contracts - financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, held for trading 1n accordance with

IAS 39 (included within other debtors) 62 99

Under the rules of IAS 32 and 39 the Group has not met the strict documentation criteria required to meet the
hedge accounting rules The forward USD purchase contracts were, therefore, independently valued and a
valuation gamn of £62,000 (2007 £99,000) was taken through the income statement  Amounts of £199,000 were
transferred to the income statement during the period

The fair value of forward currency contracts 1s subject to a currency rate sk~ A 10% vanation 1n the valuation
of sterling at the balance sheet date would have an impact of £0 2 miallion (2007 £0 2 million) All of this would
be taken to the income statement

The amounts generated from the sensitivity analysis are estimates of the impact of market risk assuming that
specified changes occur  Actual results in the future may differ materially from these results due to
developments 1n the global financial markets which may cause fluctuations mn exchange rates to vary from the
hypothettcal amounts, which therefore should not be considered a projection of likely future events and losses
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20.  Obligations under finance leases

Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

Less future finance charges

Less Amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current liabilities}

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

Minimum lease

Present value of

payments lease payments
2008 2007 2008 2007
£000 £°000 £°000 £°000
191 - 150 -
382 - 300 -
573 - 450 -
(123) . N/A N/A
450 - 450 -
(150) -
300 -

During the period, the Group sold and leased back certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The
average lease term 15 four years For the period ended 5 Apnil 2008, the average effective borrowing rate was 29 per
cent (2007 N/A) Interest rates are fixed at contract date  All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments  All lease obligations are denominated n sterling
The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount The Group’s obligations under
finance leases are secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets, disclosed in note 13 The finance lease

habilities are secured over the assets which are leased
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21,

Acquisition of subsidiary
Greenmark Limited

In the prior year ending 31 March 2007 the Group purchased the entire equity interest of Greenmark Limited
effective 26 January 2007 At the time provisional values were assigned to the assets and habilities acquired
based on the information that was available As all values have now been finalised we have included an updated
net assets acquired and consideration schedule set cut below

Book Fair value Fair
value adjustments value
£°000 £000 £°000
Net assets acquired
Inventones 139 - 139
Trade and other receivables 2,883 - 2,883
Cash and cash equivalents - (1,648) = «7 om0 (f,648)
Trade and other payables (1.156) - (1,156)
218 - 218
Intangible value ascribed to customer relationships 2,000
Less deferred tax habiluity {600)
Goodwill 2,128
Total consideration 3,746
Total consideration satisfied by
Cash 1,000
Convertible loan note 1,000
Loan notes 1,000
Deferred consideration 218
Directly attributable costs 528
3,746

In accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations the fair value of net assets acquired and consideration paid
have been restated to reflect the final values with the main difference being a change in customer relationships
from £8,000,000 to £2,000,000 and the related deferred tax hability decreasing from £2,400,000 to £600,000
The constitution of the customer base of Greenmark Limited has changed substantially from that at the date of
acquisttion and 1t was therefore necessary to review the value place upon the customer relationships  As a result
the fair value of net assets acquired 1n excess of the fair value of purchase consideration recognised in the
income statement 1n the prior year has been restated from £2.124,000 to zero and goodwill of £2,128,000 has
been recogmised  As a result of the change 1n the customer relationships intangible asset, amortisation of the
asset 1n the year ended 31 March 2007 has reduced by £100,600 from the previously published results with a
corresponding reduction to the deferred tax credit 1n the penod of £30,000
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22,

23.

Notes to the cash flow statement

2008 2007
Restated
£000 £°000
Operating (loss)/profit from continuing operations (4.740) 8.025
Adjustments for
Net gamn on denvatives 62} 99
Depreciation of property, plant and equpment 330 335
Amortisation of intangible assets 540 361
Share option charge 10 84
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (3,922) 8,908
(Increase) /decrease n inventories - » e (2,002) s sz s 1G85 on
Decrease in receivables 4,102 9,391
{Decrease) 1n payables (872) (2,260)
Cash generated by operations (2,804) 16,207
Income taxes paxd (501) (1,959)
Interest paid (1,352) (1,730)
Net cash from operating activities (4,657) 12,518

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less

The subsidiary I C de Castelbajac Italy s r | has restricted cash in the current and prior year of €444 002 due to
an ongoing htigation case There 1s also restricted cash of £379,000 in relation to the Greenmark loan notes

Contingent liabilities

A claim has been made aganst our Italian subsidiary, J C de Castelbajac Italy s r1 by the receiver of a former
hcensee The claim relates to the non-payment for goods which we consider to be unfounded Should judgement
be made against the Company the exposure 15 €240,000 plus VAT and legal expenses

J C de Castelbajac Italy s r | has fited two counter claims against the receiver Our advisers estimate that 1f our
counter claims were successful they would result in a settlement receivable by the Group of up to €350,000

In addition to the claims described above, the Trustee responsible for the bankruptcy of the former licensee has
made a claim for €2 5 nullion agawnst our Italian subsidiary, JC de Castelbajac Italy s r 1 Our Italian legal
advisors have advised a more likely outcome for which a provision has been raised

A former employee of Jean-Charles de Castelbajac SA has filed a claim with the French labour court for
damages for abusive termination of his employment and 1s seeking damages 1n the sum of €1,750,000 No
provision has been made for this claim as the directors do not consider an outcome against Marchpole to be
probable
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24,  Operating lease arrangements

Lease payments under operating leases
recogmised 1n expenses for the period

2008
£°000

1,293

2007
£000

1,109

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

2008 2007

£000 £000

1,475 1,288

o er 3,900 L. L4344
18 35

5,393 5,667

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certam of its office properties Leases are
negotiated for an average term of five years and rentals are fixed for an average of five years

25.  Share based payments
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company has an Unapproved Share Option Scheme and an Enterprise Management Incentive (“EMI”)
Share Option Scheme in which all employees of the Group participate subject to certain qualifying critena
Shares under the schemes generally vest and become exercisable 1n equal tranches dependent on the attainment
of proposed market capitalisations of the Company, on each twelve month anniversary from the date of grant
The vesting periods are of two or three years  Options are forfeited 1f the employee leaves the Group The
Company also operates a Third Party Share Agreement over ordinary shares The total share option pool will
not exceed 10% of the 1ssued share capital and all options will lapse on the 10" anniversary of the grant date

Details of the share options outstanding during the period are as follows

2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
share price share price
options (in p) options (in p)
Outstanding at beginning of period 1,002,835 126 65 1,069,001 123 25
Granted duning the period 4,000 - - -
Forfeited during the period - - (38,000) 9351
Exercised during the period (5.500) 87179 (28.166) 42 40
Expwred during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the perrod 1,001,335 126 44 1,002,835 126 65
Exercisable at the end of the period 11,668 70 83 13,168 65 47
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25,

26.

27.

28.

Share based payments (continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was
87 79p The options outstanding at 5 Apnil 2008 had a weighted average exercise price of 126 44p, and a
weighted average remaining contractual hife of 6 years

Exercise prices for share options outstanding at the end of the pertod ranged from 23 75p 10 128 75p

The inputs nto the Binomial model are as follows

2008 2007
Weighted average share price 127 55p 127 55p
Weighted average exercise price 128 05p 128 05p
Expected volatility 405% 40 5%
Expected life . 74 5% T4 5%
Risk-free rate 47% 4 7%
Expected dividends 2% 2%

Expected volatilsty was determined by calculating the 10, 30, 50 and 100 day volaulity of the Group's share
price at each grant date The expected Iife used 1n the model has been calculated by assuming that all options
granted will, on average, be exercised when the share prices 1s at least 30% higher than the exercise price

The Group recogmised total expenses of £10,000 and £84,000 retated to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions 1 2008 and 2007 respectively

Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees in the UK
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group 1n funds under the control of trustees
Ehgible employees are entitled to a contribution of up to 5% of salary provided they contribute a matching

amount

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary i the USA are eligible for a 401(k) plan which offers a deferred tax
benefit The Company will match employee contributions to a maximum of 4 5% of salary The 401(k) plan
assets are held separately from those of the Group under the control of an independent manager

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries 1n France are eligible for pension benefits provided by a Government
agency The Company funds 12 6% of salaries

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are ehigible for the Hong Kong Government’s
Mandatory Provident Fund, which 1s funded to a maximum of 5% of salaries

The total cost charged to tncome of £30,000 (2007 £86,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans

Events after the balance sheet date

We are i the process of signing a major new joint venture with one of the world’s leading fashion design
houses  Furthermore, we have successfully renegotiated our banking facilities with increases to support the joint
venture We expect to formally announce this joint venture imminently

Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and 1ts subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been elimmated on
consohidation and are not disclosed in this note
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29. Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the executive directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, 1s set out in
the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 12 to 17

30. Subsidiaries

A listing of the Group’s subsidiaries 15 included as note 7 to the Company’s separate financial statements below
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Marchpole Holdings plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Marchpole Holdings plc for the period ended
5 April 2008 which comprise the balance sheet, the cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 9 These parent
company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Marchpole Holdings plc for the period ended
5 April 2008 and on the information 1n the Directors' Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, i accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 QOur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them 1n an auditors” report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibtlities for preparing the Annual Report and the parent company financial statements 1n
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out 1n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements 1n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland}

We report tc you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Compames Act
1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report 1s consistent with
the parent company financial statements The mformation given 1n the Directors’ Report includes that specific
information presented in the Chairman’s Statement that 1s cross referred from the Business Review section of the
Directors’ Report

In addition we report to you if, 1n our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or 1f information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider
whether 1t 1s consistent with the audrted parent company financial statements We consider the implications for our
report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company
financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any further information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the parent company financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the
accounting pohicies are appropnate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary n order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other wregulanty or error In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company
financial statements
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Marchpole Holdings plc
(continued)

Opinion
In our opimion

o the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the company's affawrs as at 5 April 2008,

e the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Compantes Act 1985,

and

¢ the information given n the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, United Kingdom

4 August 2008
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Non-current assets
Investment 1n subsidiaries
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Trade and other recervables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current hablities
Trade and other payables
Loans

Non-current habiliies
[.oans

Net assets

Equity

Share capital

Share premuum account
Other reserves
Retained earmings

Equity attributable to equity holders to the parent

The financ
were sigy its behalf by

4 August 2008

Note

(== R R Y

2008 2007
£7000 £000
13,424 13,383

" 48

. 1
13,424 13,432
1,479 393
168 1,875

1,647 2,268
15,071 15,700
(7,614)  (12.646)
(2,000) .

- (2 000)

5,457 1,054

1,367 1373

2,809 2,800

384 374
897 (3.493)
5,457 1,054

flatements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 4 August 2008 They

P Hoe

n
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Marchpole Holdings plc

Company cash flow statement
Year ended 5 April 2008

Net (deficit) / cash from operating activities*
Investing activities

Purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangibles
Acquisition of subsidiary

Purchase of own shares

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends paid

Proceeds on 15sue of shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

*Net Cash from Operating Activities

Operating loss from continuing operations
Adjustments for
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Share Option Charge
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Decrease n receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in payables

Cash (utilised)/generated by operations
Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

2008 2007
£2000 £°000
(685) 4,952
- (45)
@1y (2,302)
(69) -
(110 (2,347)
(915) (1.021)
3 15
912) (1,006)
(1,707) 1,599
1,875 276
168 1,875
2008 2007
£7000 £7000
(222) (2,020)
[ -
10 84
21 (1,936)
4,769 3,487
(4,989) 3,419
@31 4,970
(254) (18)
(685) 4,952
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Significant accounting policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985 As
permutted by that Act, the separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Fmancial Reporting Standards

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis  The principal accounting policies
adopted are the same as those set out 1n note 2 to the consohdated financial statements

Investments 1n subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment

The Company has applied the exemption 1n Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, and not shown a
Company income statement The loss for the period after tax was £ 0 5 million (2007 £2 O millon)

Staff

The Company has no staff other than the directors The directors’ salaries are disclosed 1n the Directors™ ™
remuneration report

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables

At the balance sheet date trade and other receivables includes amounts receivable from the fellow Group
companies of £1 3million (2007 £0 3million) The carrying amount of these assets approxtmates to their fair
value

Cash and cash equivalents

These comprise cash held by the Company The carrying amount of these assets 1s equal to their fair value

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

Trade payables principally comprise intercompany debts and amounts outstanding for ongoing costs At the
balance sheet date trade and other payables included amounts payable to fellow Group companies of
£ 6 8mullion (2007 £11 8million)

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value

Loans

Loans represent loan notes 1ssued on the acquisition of Greenmark Limited as part of the purchase
consideration Further detatls regarding the loan notes have been disclosed 1n note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements

Share capital, other reserves and share premium account

The movements on these items are disclosed n the Consolidated statement of changes 1n shareholders’ equuty
in the consolidated financial statements
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7. Subsidiaries
Subsidiary Name Holding Country Voting  Nature of business
of
Incorp- Rights
oration
Artpower Limited Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Design and Distribution of
Britain Ozwald Boeteng menswear
Glolite Limuted * Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Dormant
Britan
JC de Castelbajac Itafy sl Ordinary Shares  ltaly 100% Sales and distribution of JCC
brands
Marchpole Italy s r ] Ordinary Shares  Italy 100% Sales and distribution of JCC
brands
Jean-Charles de Castelbajac SA Ordinary Shares |, France 100%  _ Design of JCC lines and sub-
licensing
JCC Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Shares Hong 100% Procurement for JCC brands
Kong
Locatos Holdings BV* Ordinary Shares  Nether- 100% Holding Company
lands
Marchpole Group Limited * Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Design, Sales and Distribution
Britain of YSL and Ungaro menswear
brands
Marchpole Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Shares Hong 100% Procurement support for YSL
Kong and Ungaro brands
Marchpole (North America) Limited * Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Dormant
Britan
Marchpole Trading Limuted Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Sales and Dastribution of JCC
Britain Brands
Marchpole Worldwide Limited Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Sales and Distribution of
Britain Ungaro Brands
Marchpole Worldwide France SA Ordinary Shares  France 100% Sales and Distribution of
Ungaro Brands
Minegoal Limited Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Holding Company
Britain
Moda America LLC Ordinary Shares USA 100% Sales and Distribution of
Ungaro and JCC Brands
Tomasz Starzewski Menswear Limuted *  Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Dormant
Britain
Greenmark Limited Ordinary Shares  Great 100% Design, Sales and Distribution
Britamn of ladies shoes
Homebody Limited Ordinary Shares  Great 51% Design, Sales and Distnibution
Britam of Homebody and

* Held through an intermediate holding Company

Homemummy Brands
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8.

Retained earnings
£000

Balance at 1 April 2006 (429)
Dividends paid (1,021
Net loss for the period (2,043)
Balance at 1 April 2007 (3,493)
Dividends paid (915)
Dividends received 5,856
Net loss for the period (482)
Own shares (69)
Balance at 5 April 2008 897

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the executive directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company, 1s set out
in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 12 to 17
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Marchpole Holdings plc

Unaudited consolidated five year history

IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS UK GAAP
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Restated restated restated restated
£000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £000
Resalts
Revenue 44,749 90,534 38,370 31,520 19,986
(Loss)/Profit from operations (4,740) 8,029 4,994 5,133 2,782
(Loss)/Profit before tax (6,092) 6,299 4,453 4,880 2,655
Assets employed
Non-current assets 11,295 (1,298 7,367 4,586 4,048
Current assets 18,557 20,423 25,570 11,298 8,828
Current labilities (23,465) (14,787) (22,424) s 0 +A8,283) (7,680)
Non-current liabilities (802) (4,449) (740 (315) (588)
Net assets 5,585 12,485 9,773 7,286 4,608
Financed by
Equity 5,585 12,485 9,773 7.286 4,608
Key statistics
Earnings per share (19 9p) 15 3p llp lip p
Diluted earmings per share (199 15 3p lp tip Tp

The amounts disclosed for 2004 are stated on the basis of UK GAAP because 1t 1s not practicable to restate amounts
for periods prior to the date of transition to [FRS
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